
Date Published:6 January 2022     

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

Friday 14 January 2022 at 10.00 am

Virtual Meeting - Web ex meeting

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 16)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2021. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests from members. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  BLUE LIGHT COLLABORATION 

To receive a presentation on collaboration between GFRS and the PCC. 

Nick Evans, 
Mark Preece

5  GFRS BUDGET (Pages 17 - 18)

To receive an update on the GFRS budget for 2022/23, following the 
budget scrutiny session on 6 January 2022. 

Mark Preece

6  GFRS STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020/21 (Pages 19 - 44)

To consider the GFRS Statement of Assurance 2020/21.

Mark Preece

7  HMICFRS INSPECTION UPDATE FOR GFRS AND STATE OF FIRE 
REPORT 2021 (Pages 45 - 46)

To receive a briefing note on the HMICFRS Inspection Update for GFRS 
and State of Fire Report 2021.

Mark Preece



    

WORK PLANNING

8  WORK PLAN 2021/22 (Pages 47 - 48)

To consider the Committee work plan, and to suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

9  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the meeting dates for 2022 (all meetings to start at 10am):

4 March 2022
27 May 2022
15 July 2022
2 September 2022
11 November 2022.

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

Membership –  Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair), Cllr Nick Housden (Vice-Chair), 
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Wendy Thomas, Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

FIRE AND RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee held on Friday 
12 November 2021 commencing at 10.00 am at the Members' Room - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair)
Cllr Wendy Thomas

Cllr Brian Tipper
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Substitutes: Cllr David Brown
Cllr Dr Andrew Miller

Apologies:

In Attendance:

Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Nick Housden and Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington

Cllr David Norman, Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking 
and Libraries
Mark Preece, Interim Chief Fire Officer, GFRS

16. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Bernie Fisher, Nick Housden and Mark 
Mackenzie-Charrington. Cllr David Brown substituted at the meeting for Cllr Fisher. 
Cllr Andrew Miller substituted at the meeting for Cllr Housden. 

17. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

Mark Preece, Interim Chief Fire Officer (CFO), updated the Committee as to when 
the Government’s consultative white paper on fire services reform was expected to 
be published. It was understood that the Committee would be notified as soon as 
the paper was released, and an additional Committee meeting may need to be 
arranged to consider it. 

Following a query about the CFO’s and Lead Cabinet Member’s quarterly meetings 
with the Police Crime Commissioner (PCC), it was recognised that unless the 
Committee needed to be made aware of any specific projects or concerns, there 
was no need for notes from that meeting to be shared with the Committee. 

Clarification was also sought regarding the priorities for collaborative work between 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) and the PCC, as well as with the 
South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (SWAST). 

18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

19. RECRUITMENT WITHIN THE FIRE SERVICE 

Mark Preece presented the GFRS Recruitment and Selection Review report to the 
Committee. 

Members noted that the report provided a review of the Service’s recent whole time 
firefighter recruitment process, which took place between January and May 2021. 

Members were informed that a new recruitment strategy had been introduced, 
which included having a process that was strengths based, taking into account an 
individual’s values and behaviours. 

Members were advised that positive action for the recruitment campaign had been 
hindered by the pandemic, however in order to improve focus in this area, GFRS 
and GCC had now appointed a Culture and Inclusion Manager who started with the 
Service in October 2021. 

969 applications were received in response to the recruitment campaign, which, 
following a postcode sift, pre-sift and full sift, was reduced to 198 applications. 
Following evaluation days, the activities of which were detailed in the report, 80 
applicants were put through fitness testing and final interviews. On completion of 
this process, 18 candidates were offered an immediate job and 22 were offered a 
position in a succession pool. 

It was explained to members that the recruitment process had been thoroughly 
evaluated and a few improvements had been flagged, including the need to 
improve the information available on their website. 

A breakdown of candidate statistics had been produced following the recruitment 
process. In particular, it was noted that 40 percent of the successful applicants were 
women, 15 percent were mixed race/minority ethnic, 20 percent identified as 
LGBT+, and 13 percent had a disability. 

The Committee discussed the report and the information they had been presented 
with.

One member queried whether the percentage of female applicants increased as the 
process went along because they were more likely to take their application 
seriously? In response, it was explained that female applicants had a wide range of 
interpersonal skills to offer the role of being a firefighter as well as being able to 
pass the fitness tests. 

It was clarified, following a query, that all successful candidates passed the same 
fitness and entry tests. Should a candidate fail a fitness test marginally, they were 
offered the chance to take the test again. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Another member queried whether the Service had learned lessons from the data 
and had since considered the way it advertised its posts to attract a wider 
audience? They also commented that it would have been helpful to have data on 
the percentage of the various different communities within the general population 
for comparison. 

In response, the CFO explained that going forward they were keen to work with the 
new Inclusion Manager to address this issue in order to be able to engage with a 
wider audience during the recruitment process. 

In response to a question as to what was being done to address the culture of the 
fire service, it was explained that an action plan had been developed with a range 
of activities, including engaging with a company on conscious bias training which 
would be rolled out to middle managers, engaging with the local mosque and 
friendship café to develop local relationships, and training two champions to focus 
on the issue. 

Cllr Dave Norman, Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking and Libraries, 
informed members that he had taken on the role of the Local Government 
Association Fire Diversity and Inclusion Champion on behalf of GCC and GFRS. He 
explained that of 45 fire authorities in the UK, sadly only 22 were represented on 
that network. He also queried whether progression opportunities for those from the 
BAME community in the Service needed to be looked at?

There was a query as to whether there needed to be a continual recruitment 
process? In response, it was understood that the recruitment process was resource 
intensive as there was not a dedicated team for recruitment. Having a succession 
pool meant that they could respond to staff turnover. 

It was noted that the retention of firefighters needed to be monitored. It was 
suggested that an update providing an overview of the expectations for GFRS 
recruitment and retention over the next five years be provided to the Committee.

20. THE FINANCIAL HEALTH OF GFRS 

Mark Preece updated the Committee on the financial health of the GFRS. The 
written update was contained within the Performance Data report.

Members were informed that the revenue budget shows an overspend of £89k, all 
of which was related to Covid-19 issues. Excluding Covid-19 the outturn position 
was on-target, however this included full use of the top-up reserve for on-call 
training.

The Service had received in-year funding totalling £587k to off-set staff turnover 
and training. Taking this into consideration, the bid for next year’s budget would be 
£987k.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

For 2021/22, the capital budget for GFRS had been split to fund new breathing 
apparatus, mobile data terminals, fire appliances and equipment, light vehicles and 
the mobilising system upgrade. 

The Committee was also advised that a paper had been taken to Cabinet to request 
additional funding for an aerial appliance. 
 

21. GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA 

Mark Preece provided the Committee with the latest GFRS performance data.

In particular, members were made aware that the timeliness of responding to 
accidental dwelling fires was within tolerance of target in Quarter 2, with 
performance marginally better than the comparator group. Furthermore, the number 
of accidental dwelling fires were reducing, with work undertaken to explore any risk 
factors, such as age or location. 

Additionally, performance relating to the rate of Safe and Well visits was continuing 
to improve, and GFRS continued to reach the most vulnerable in the County with 83 
percent of Safe and Well visits undertaken being to people in vulnerable groups. 

Members were advised that the risk relating to insufficient workforce capacity 
remained rated as moderate, however the risk score had increased. This was being 
addressed through in-year and MTFS bids. 

The Committee was informed, in an update on the Portfolio Management Board, 
that there was a risk to the Service as a result of the new driving national standard 
for emergency driving because there were low numbers of training hours available 
due to the two instructors being part time. 

There was a query regarding the need to replace current radios. In response, it was 
explained that funding to replace the radios would be included in the MTFS bid.  It 
was clarified that all current equipment was tested for safety, and that defective 
radios were currently repaired where possible. 

Members were advised that funds from the Grenfell Infrastructure Grant were 
beginning to be spent, however national issues relating to course availability had 
slowed the Service’s spending. 

In an update on the HMICFRS Inspection, informal feedback would be given to the 
CFO and the Lead Cabinet Member on 1 December 2021. 

Finally, an update on progress with the Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) 
2022-25 would be provided to the Committee at a later meeting. 

One member queried whether there had been an increase in the number of visits to 
houses with large batteries? It was explained, in response, that this was not a risk 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

GFRS was frequently experiencing; however with the increase in the number of 
electric vehicles, this may be an emerging risk in the future. 

22. WORK PLAN 2021/22 

At its next meeting on 14 January 2022, the Committee would consider:

- The GFRS budget 2022/23;
- A report from the PCC and Chief Fire Officer on blue light collaboration in 

Gloucestershire; and
- The GFRS Statement of Assurance 2020/21. 

23. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The future meeting dates were noted. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.20 am

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee actions – 12 November 2021

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Recruitment within the 
Fire Service

To ensure job advertisements are targeted so that 
they reach all communities. 

Mark Preece This action will be an ongoing 
action as GFRS continually 
recruits On-Call Firefighters 
and will be mindful of this 
action when commencing our 
next Wholetime Firefighter 
Recruitment process 
(anticipated to be 2023-24).

250. Recruitment within the 
Fire Service

To provide Committee members with a short 
written report providing an overview of the 
expectations for GFRS recruitment and retention 
over the next five years. 

Mark Preece Report to be included in the 
agenda papers for the 
meeting in January 2022. 

351. Work Plan 2021/22 To add to the work plan 2021/22:
- Statement of Assurance 2020/21 to 

January.
- GFRS and SWASFT collaboration, 

including the impact of this on GFRS and 
the positives and negatives.

Laura Powick Completed. 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Report to Fire and Rescue 
Scrutiny Committee: 

14th January 2022 10:00hrs

Recruitment and Retention in GFRS                                        
   
 

Purpose of Report:

At the meeting on 12 November 2021 CFO Mark Preece presented the GFRS 
whole-time firefighters Recruitment and Selection Review Report to the Committee.  
This report evaluated the recruitment process that took place in 2021 and identified 
areas for improvement.
The following actions were noted by the committee and are addressed in this report:

1. Whether progression opportunities for those from the BAME community in the 
Service need to be looked at?

2. That the retention of firefighters needed to be monitored
3. That an update providing an overview of the expectations for GFRS 

recruitment and retention over the next five years be provided to the 
Committee.

1. Under represented Groups and Positive Action
Members were advised at the previous meeting that positive action for the 
recruitment campaign had been hindered by the pandemic, however in order to 
improve focus in this area, a Culture and Inclusion Manager has been recruited who 
started with the Service in October 2021. 
The Service already monitor the breakdown of staff based on gender and ethnicity 
on a monthly and quarterly basis as part of key performance indicators to understand 
where there is under representation of Gloucestershire communities.  The Service 
still need to look at monitoring LGBT+ staff where 50.1% of staff do not record their 
sexual orientation making it difficult to monitor.
The Service has recently been recognised by the Home Office as the top ranked 
service in England for its proportion of female firefighters. 17.1 per cent of firefighters 
at GFRS are women – 73 of the total.  Gloucestershire was among only five fire and 
rescue services in the country to have achieved higher than 10 per cent when the 
workforce diversity data was recorded on 31 March 2021.

Page 9



2

However, although the Service evidenced in the whole-time recruitment evaluation 
report that BAME candidates were not disadvantaged by the process, the Service 
acknowledge that there is more work to do to attract these under represented groups 
to apply for roles in the fire and rescue service.
Currently the Service only have 12 BAME staff members, 2.62%, whereas 4.6% of 
the population of Gloucestershire are from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) 
backgrounds.  The Service recognise we have more work to do in this area to reflect 
the community.  One of the priorities is to ensure that positive action becomes 
embedded as a core part of what the service delivers and not just when recruitment 
is taking place.  
A draft action plan has been developed that identifies the breakdown of the 
communities in Gloucestershire and compares it to the breakdown of GFRS staff.  
This enables the Service to focus engagement with the under represented groups in 
communities.  
The action plan also supports the council’s equality action plan and includes:

 Promoting Positive Action to all staff as ambassadors

 Improvements in recruitment information on GFRS webpages with images 
demonstrating diversity and personal stories by staff 

 Advertising recruitment with under represented organisations

 Retention: Supporting under represented staff by providing buddies 

 Progression: Offering access to under represented groups to ‘Stepping Up’ 
courses and the opportunity to offer Reverse Mentoring to Senior Leaders.

The Service now monitor and evaluate all recruitment and promotion processes to 
ensure there is no disadvantage to under represented groups, including gender, 
ethnicity and LGBT+.
As part of the Cultural Improvement Plan the Service has commissioned ‘Above 
Difference’ who have a wealth of experience in providing public sector organisations 
support in this area.  As well as providing Cultural Intelligence training to our senior 
leaders they will also provide independent and external scrutiny of the Improvement 
plans and EDI policies.  This will offer the Service assurance and feedback on how 
the Service can continue to improve recruitment and promotion processes.

2. Leavers and Retention
We monitor leavers on a monthly and quarterly basis to understand why staff are 
leaving and what we can do better that may improve retention.

Category
Headcount

1st 
October 

2021

Leavers 12 
months 

(01/12/20-
30/11/21)

Turnover 12 
months

(01/12/20-
30/11/21)

Completed 
exit 

interview/form 
12 months
(01/12/20-
30/11/21)

Control 21 1 4.76% 0
Retained 201 36 17.91% 3

Page 10



3

Support staff 51 5 9.80% 1
Whole time 185 20 10.81% 1
Whole service 458 62 13.54% 5

The majority of leavers from whole-time firefighting roles are due to retirements or 
leaving to work for another fire and rescue service.  For on call staff the majority 
leave due to making work life balance decisions.
Overall numbers of exit interviews within Community Safety/ GFRS are low 
compared to other Directorates although these have increased slightly recently.  
More work is needed over coming months to encourage greater exit interview 
completion and promotion of the new process introduced earlier this year as part of 
the Culture section of the Improvement Plan.
The data from these exit interviews is analysed so that we can see where we need to 
improve.

3.  Workforce Planning 
The GFRS Workforce Planning (WFP) group was set up in July 2020 to co-ordinate 
the approach and application of workforce planning activity across GFRS (Whole 
time, On call, Retained Firefighters and Support and Fire control employees).  
The Workforce Planning Group is chaired by ACFO Jean Cole with senior Area 
Manager representation from every area of the service, as well as HR.   The Group 
has oversight of all workforce planning activity and decision making within the 
service including regular monitoring of temporary promotions, reviewing our 
retirement profiles so we know when to recruit, considering how we can increase 
representation from under represented groups and supporting succession planning, 
talent and leadership development.   
Over the last 12 months the Service have carried out the most intense period of 
recruitment and promotion that GFRS has ever seen, with processes being 
conducted for every level within the organisation. At the beginning of this period, the 
Service launched its new promotion policy and took the decision to recruit into 
Succession Pools to ensure future resilience and manage demands on our capacity.  
This means that when a vacancy arises at any given level, we are now able to fill it 
immediately, which is key for operational resilience. 
Every month the Workforce Planning Group receive a report on vacancies and 
forecast retirements of all staff groups.  This includes an update on the number left in 
the succession pool, to enable identification of timelines for planned future 
recruitments and promotions processes.  As the Service recruit into Succession 
Pools for every level of the organisation there are estimated to be enough staff in the 
pools to cover retirements until the end of 2023.  The Succession pools are 
monitored monthly as there will always be leavers who we did not anticipate.  This 
enable the Service to schedule the next planned recruitment at any level in a timely 
manner.
It is important to note that these estimates are based on static current establishment 
levels. If the service were to grow or expand over the coming years, it’s likely to have 
a knock on effect on numbers and bring the need to recruit forward. 

Page 11



4

3.1 Recruitment and Promotions
Below is a summary of the planning information that the Workforce Planning Group 
receive on a monthly basis.
As at the 1st January we are 3.5 over establishment for whole-time firefighters.  This 
is due to the requirement of training new recruits through the apprenticeship course 
which works most effectively in blocks of 6 or 12.
According to the pivot data provided by HR /Peninsular the following retirements will 
accrue across the organisation.  There has been no estimate made for retirements 
due to pension changes in April 2022 or leaving to join other FRSs, but this is kept 
under constant review.  
On call firefighter recruitment follows the same format as for whole-time firefighter 
recruitment.  However, recruitment for this group of firefighters runs continuously 
based on need.  This is due to the limiting requirement of applicants needing to live 
or work in a specific radius of the fire station, in order to meet response targets.  This 
reduces the possible numbers of applicants considerably.
For further information our recruitment information can be found on the Service 
website
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/glosfire/recruitment-at-gloucestershire-fire-and-
rescue-service/

All Roles Pool end date Retirements 2024 to 
2026

Level No. in 
Pool

Vacancies 
in 3 
months 
(Nov 21 to 
Jan 22)

Vacancies 
in 6 
months 
(Feb 22 to 
April 22)

Vacancies 
in 9 
month 
(May 22 to 
July 22)

Vacancies 
until pool 
ends (Aug 
22 to Dec 
2023

2024 2025 2026

PO 1

Area 
Manager

1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0

Group 
Manager

2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

Station 
Manager

2 0 1 0 1 0 2 0

Watch 
Manager

3 0 1 0 2 1 0 4

Crew 
Manager

3 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

Fire 18 1 4 0 2 2 1 2

Page 12

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/glosfire/recruitment-at-gloucestershire-fire-and-rescue-service/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/glosfire/recruitment-at-gloucestershire-fire-and-rescue-service/


5

Fighter

Total 1 6 0 6 8 3 6

We have 6 trained firefighters in the succession pool (that are already currently On – 
Call or in other FRSs) that can be used immediately to in fill unexpected whole time 
vacancies when staff leave (currently 2 forecast this year leaving to work for other 
FRS.)
This workforce planning data that GFRS holds suggests that the following 
recruitment and promotions processes should be timetabled, provided there is no 
growth in establishment numbers which would change this forecast and bring the 
dates forward significantly. (This is kept under monthly review and is subject to 
change if the data changes.)

Level Dates

Area Managers January 2024

Group Managers March 2024

Station Managers September 2024

Watch Managers September 2023

Crew Managers November 2023

Whole-time Recruitment April to July 2023

Whole-time firefighters workforce planning

+ 3.5 WT 
Firefighter

Jan 
22

Feb 
22

Mar 
22

Apr 
22

May 
22

Jun 
22

July 
22

Aug 
22

Sep
22

Oct 
22

Nov 
22

Dec 
22

Total 

Retirement 1 2 3 1 2 
pool

2 2 11

Affect on 
W/T 
numbers

+2.5 +0.5 -2.5 -3.5 -1.5 Apprentice
ship course 
booked for 
6

+2.5 +0.5

Jan 
23

Feb 
23

Mar 
23

Apr 
23

May 
23

Jun 
23

July 
23

Aug 
23

Sept 
23

Oct 
23

Nov 
23

Dec 
23

Retirement 1 1 2

Affect on 
W/T 
numbers 
+0.5

+0.5 -0.5 Plan recruitment for 
firefighters succession 
pool: estimated numbers 
required to 2026 is 9.5 
plus impact of internal 

-1.5 Apprentice
ship course 
for 6

+4.5

Page 13



6

promotions 

Jan 
24

Feb 
24

Mar 
24

Apr 
24

May 
24

Jun 
24

July 
24

Aug 
24

Sept 
24

Oct 
24

Nov 
24

Dec 
24

Retirement 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 8

Affect on 
W/T 
numbers

+3.5 +2.5 +1.5 +0.5 -0.5 -1.5 -2.5 -3.5

Jan 
25

Feb 
25

Mar 
25

Apr 
25

May 
25

Jun 
25

July 
25

Aug 
25

Sept 
25

Oct 
25

Nov 
25

Dec 
25

Retirement 1 1 1 3

Affect on 
W/T 
numbers

-4.5 -5.5 -6.5

Jan 
26

Feb 
26

Mar 
26

Apr 
26

May 
26

Jun 
26

July 
26

Aug 
26

Sept 
26

Oct 
26

Nov 
26

Dec 
26

Retirement 1 1 4 6

Affect on 
W/T 
numbers

-7.5 -8.5 -9.5

3.2 Skills, Development and Progression Plans 

In addition to numbers of roles to recruit to, the other key data required for 
workforce planning is ensuring we have the skills required for the roles.  Due 
to the high level of recruitment and promotion required in the past 12 months 
there are relatively high numbers of staff in development. The number of staff 
in development, and resulting competence and experience levels from this 
workforce profile has been highlighted as a specific risk on the corporate risk 
register (S.R. 1.4). As whole time leavers tend to be more experienced staff 
who retire, the Service need to ensure that the levels of skill is managed. 
When considered against a trend of decreasing emergency incidents, the risk 
to general operational safety and competence is exacerbated. This gap can 
only (and must) be plugged by increasing the level of training and 
development given to staff. Put simply, ‘as incidents decrease, training 
requirements increase’ – due to the fact that staff do not gain the experience 
necessary or have opportunity to practice their skills at operational incidents. 
Owing to this GFRS’s Learning and Development team have sought to 
expand through the MTFS process.

The following is the latest data on those in development in the Service:

Page 14



7

Role Total number
Number in 
Development

Percentage 
%

Firefighter 271 92 34

Crew Manager 71 31 44

Watch Manager 45 6 13

Station Manager 16 6 38

Group Manager 4 0 0

Area Manager 4 0 0

The workforce planning data suggests that in 2023/24 we will lose 3 of our 4 Area 
Managers in a very short timeframe.  To address this we are working on 
development pathways for all staff in line with the National Fire Chiefs Council 
project on professional standards.  These pathways will look to develop staff that 
have the potential to be promoted and ensure that we have our future leaders ready 
for the roles, as these are key posts in the organisation.

As well as improving initial firefighter training through the use of the apprenticeship 
levy, the Service have also managed to improve large scale exercising this year with 
the running of 4 x 10 pump large scale exercises, to help ensure that as a service we 
are fully prepared to provide a professional response to any size incident. More large 
scale exercising is planning in 2022.
To support this increase in training and development the Service has been 
successful in requesting a growth bid for learning and development.  This will ensure 
provision of an improved level of training and exercising to support our Safer 
Firefighter Programme.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



GFRS SCRUTINY - GFRS REVENUE BUDGET/MTFS 22/23

The 2021/22 revenue base budget for GFRS totals £17.731m and current forecast 
indicate that the outturn is expected to be on target excluding costs associated with 
Covid-19. This position has been achieved through additional in-year funding of 
£587k plus the use of a £181k reserve for On-call training.

Following the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) process, the Service is 
anticipating an increase to the revenue budget of £1.144m for 2022/23. This is 
comprised of permanent base funding for:

 Pay inflation £299k
 Increase in NI contributions £129k
 Provision of structural firefighting PPE for operational staff £65k
 Additional Driver Trainer post for Learning & Development to implement new 

professional standards for emergency response driver training £45k
 Additional Watch Manager post for Learning & Development to implement 

national operational guidance and new fire standards for training £56k
 Additional Crew Manager post for Learning & Development to cover increased 

operational training demand £50k
 Additional Supervisory Manager post for Logistics & Equipment to lead and 

deliver procurement projects for specialist equipment £35k
 Additional Community Safety Advisors posts (x2) to deliver Safe & Well visits 

to the most vulnerable people within the county £59k
 Additional Road Safety post to deliver and coordinate road safety education & 

campaigns £42k

Plus, one-year funding for:

 Investment training costs - Learning & Development: increased demand for 
essential operational training courses due to high levels of firefighters in 
development following the retirement of experienced staff £159k

 Investment training for On-Call staff due to an increase in specialist functions 
within the remit of the role £184k

 Additional Young Person Support Officer post to help reduce the risk from 
fires started deliberately by children and to develop young person-centred 
prevention intervention campaigns (unhealthy or inquisitive interest in fire, 
counselling support following a fire in the home) £32k

With the one-year funding, the expectation is that outcomes from the investment will 
be closely monitored and if required, further MTFS bids will be entered next year 
backed-up by strong evidence of continued need. 

As with all GCC departments, there is an expectation that fees and charges will be 
increased by 3% to provide additional income of £11k.

The majority of the budget increase is centred around training needs to ensure our 
operational staff are working in a safe manner. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service has a very new operational workforce with 51% of staff being in the 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



development phase of their firefighting role creating an increased training burden. 
£393k of additional funding for training will ensure that staff are competent in their 
operational role. There have also been changes to training standards and national 
operational guidance requiring investment of £101k to ensure the Service is 
compliant.

£100k will cover the provision of PPE and delivery of procurement projects of 
specialist equipment ensuring staff are able to work safer in what can be very 
hazardous environments.

The Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) and the Council Strategy highlights 
the need to ensure the safety of the most vulnerable within our society. £133k of 
funds will be invested in prevention roles delivering safe and well checks, road safety 
education and arson prevention activities.

GFRS MTFS CAPITAL BIDS 2022/23

The Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) highlights the importance of asset 
management and investment in digital, data and technology enabling GFRS to 
deliver a professional service to our communities. In support of this, new capital 
schemes, totalling £2.819m, include:

 Replacement and upgrade of fireground radios £120k
 Replacement of PPE for specialist incidents including swift water rescue, 

medical calls and rope rescue £289k
 Replacement of operational vehicles £2.410m

Page 18



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 1 

Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Authority 
Statement of Assurance 
2020-2021 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 2 

 

 

 
Welcome and Foreword 3 

Our Year in Numbers 4 

Statutory Duties and Responsibilities 5 

Your Safety – Our Mission 6 

Governance Arrangements 8 

Your Fire and Rescue Service 10 

Performance 16 

Looking Forward (Future Challenges) 23 

Have Your Say 24 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Contents 

Page 20



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 3 

 

 

In our roles as the Lead Cabinet Member for Fire and Chief Fire Officer, with responsibility 
for Community Safety in Gloucestershire, we are pleased to present this statement to our 
communities setting out how we are progressing towards meeting the requirements of the 
Fire and Rescue Service National Framework for England. 

As the Fire and Rescue Authority and governing body for the county, Gloucestershire County Council has a 
legal duty to ensure that a highly effective and efficient Fire and Rescue Service is provided for the people 
of Gloucestershire that also delivers value for money. 

This statement is produced to demonstrate to the communities of Gloucestershire, how your Fire and 
Rescue Service, on behalf of the Fire and Rescue Authority (Gloucestershire County Council), has in the 
last twelve months progressed towards and will continue to deliver on its mission: 

‘Working together we will provide the highest standard of community 
safety and emergency response services to the communities of 
Gloucestershire’. 
The Statement of Assurance provides information covering governance, financial and operational matters 
as well as detail about our workforce. The statement clearly demonstrates how the Fire and Rescue 
Authority works to deliver its legal obligations and highlights what the Service has achieved in the last 
twelve months and measures our progress towards achieving the strategic aims outlined in our Integrated 
Risk Management Plan 2018-2022. 

The continued contribution to the safety of people who live in, work, or visit Gloucestershire is testament to 
the values, attitude, and highly skilled workforce, guided by effective, innovative and talented leaders 
across all levels of the organisation.  We remain committed to developing our staff further and to ensuring 
that our workforce is representative of the communities we serve. 

During the timescales of this statement, GFRS has restructured using new investment and has developed 
new corporate governance arrangements to support a significant change and improvement programme.  
This programme addresses audit findings, HMICFRS recommendations and the general development of 
GFRS. We look forward to measuring the progress of this work and reporting success in our next 
statement.  We remain committed to becoming an employer of choice and delivering high quality services 
to the communities of Gloucestershire.   

 

                                                                                                                                                      

 

Welcome and foreword 

Councillor Dave Norman  

Lead Cabinet Member  

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Mark Preece   

Chief Fire Officer  

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service 

Page 21



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 4 

Our Performance 2020-2021 at a glance: 

 
1. Our Year in Numbers 

Page 22



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 5 

 

 

The primary legislation governing the Fire and Rescue Service is covered by the following: - 

 Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 
 Policing and Crime Act 2017 
 Civil Contingencies Act 2004 
 Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
 Fire and Rescue Service (Emergencies)(England) Order 2007 
 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 Localism Act 2011 
 Fire and Rescue Services National Framework 2013 

 

The primary legislative provisions that determine the functions of the Service include: - 

 Promoting fire safety 
 Extinguishing fires and protecting life and property 
 Rescuing people from road traffic accidents (and a large range of other risks determined through 

the Emergencies Order) 
 Responding to other types of emergencies 
 Entering into reinforcement schemes with other fire authorities for mutual assistance 
 Assessing the risk of emergencies occurring and use this to inform contingency planning 
 Cooperate with other local responders to reduce crime, disorder and re-offending (including anti-

social and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment) and; 
 A duty on police, fire and rescue and emergency ambulance services to collaborate where it is in 

the interests of their efficiency or effectiveness. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2. Statutory Duties and Responsibilities 

Page 23



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 6 

 

 

In order to keep you safe, the Service maintains a clear perspective on what we aim to achieve by having a 
defined Mission Statement: 

‘Working together we will provide the highest standard of community safety and 
emergency response services to the communities of Gloucestershire’. 
We underpin the mission statement with a set of key strategic aims that guide us: 

 

Focusing on our strategic aims helps us to manage risk in Gloucestershire; everything we do builds 
towards achieving these aims. 

Our key focus is your safety and we strive to: 

 Reduce the number and severity of fires and other emergency incidents occurring in 
Gloucestershire 

 Reduce the severity of injuries due to fires, road traffic collisions and other emergency 
incidents 

 Reduce the impact of fires and other emergency incidents 

 Safeguard the environment and heritage (both built and natural) 

 Protect and support the most vulnerable in our communities in partnership with other 
emergency services and agencies 

 Be effective, efficient and value for money. 

 

 
3. Your Safety – Our Mission 

Page 24



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 7 

 

 

The Fire and Rescue National Framework also directs that we should regularly analyse the county’s 
community risk profile and set out key strategic objects designed specifically to effectively manage 
identified risks. We are required, by law, to regularly produce and review our Risk Management Plan which 
contains key objectives and this is published to ensure that the communities we serve are well informed 
and understand the direction of travel for the Service. 

The Integrated Risk Management Plan (2018-21), was publicly consulted on and endorsed by 
Gloucestershire County Council in April 2018. 

The IRMP 2018 – 21 contains the following three key objectives for the Service to address during the 
period covered within the plan: 

 

• Increased focus on prevention and protection initiatives 

• Explore, further develop and maximise opportunities to collaborate with partners and other 
stakeholders 

• Reconfigure and reform our Service 

 

To view the latest version of the Integrated Risk Management Plan (2018-21) use the link below:  

 

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/glosfire/about-us/publications-and-reports/ 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 8 

Gloucestershire County Council fulfil the role of the Fire and Rescue Authority for the county as 
prescribed under the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004. They have a statutory duty to 
provide a Fire and Rescue Service for Gloucestershire with responsibilities that include: 

 Setting the overarching Corporate Strategy 
 Making key decisions where significant change or impact will affect two or more communities or 

wards or expenditure or savings exceeding £500,000 are concerned 
 Oversight, challenge, evaluation and reporting in respect of GFRS business decisions and activities 
 Internal audit of GFRS activities to ensure, among other things, the correctness of all income and 

expenditure and; 
 Provision of an Annual Governance Statement as set out in the Accounts and Audit (England) 

Regulations 2015 (as amended 2016) 

The Fire and Rescue Service comes under the ‘Public Protection, Parking, Libraries’ portfolio held by 
Councillor Dave Norman. 

Councillor Norman’s role is to oversee the work of your Fire and Rescue Service, making key decisions 
about policies and services that matter to local people. The performance of the Fire and Rescue Service is 
overseen by the Scrutiny Committee and Audit and Governance Committees. 

GCC are also responsible for ensuring that public affairs are conducted in accordance with the law and 
public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 

A ‘Statement of Accounts’ is produced and published annually on the Council’s website which contains 
headline financial information for the Communities and Infrastructure portfolio. 

Gloucestershire County Council - Statement of Accounts 

Note: Additional information regarding specific funding and expenditure for Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service is located under the section headed Performance on page 17. 

The Chief Fire Officer is appointed by the Fire Authority and forms an integral part of the Corporate 
Leadership Team within GCC, thereby providing a direct link between GFRS and GCC. 

Under the ‘Scheme of Delegations’ (contained within GCC Constitution), the Chief Fire Officer is 
responsible and can make executive decisions concerning the management of operations of 
Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service 

Note: Any decision regarding expenditure of more than £250,000 must be formally recorded via GCC. 

 
4. Governance Arrangements 

Page 26



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 9 

 

 

The Chief Fire Officer is also responsible for: 

• Overall planning and management of the budget for GFRS 

• Reporting to the Cabinet and Fire Authority and recommending for their consideration matters 
affecting finance and Service policy 

The Chief Fire Officer also undertakes the following in relation to regulatory services: 

• Sign warrants and authorise Officers to enforce the legislation referred to in the Trading 
Standards Legislation Master Lists A to D held by the Head of Legal Services and issue 
statutory notices in relation to that legislation. 

The Chief Fire Officer is required to assist in the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement for the 
council by providing a Members/Directors/Service Assurance Statement covering the internal control 
framework operating within GFRS. 

The Chief Fire Officer must also ensure a Statement of Assurance (incorporating a Statement of Accounts), 
is produced for GFRS that demonstrates the Service has regard to its obligations set out in the Fire and 
Rescue National Framework for England (2018). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 10 

Structure and Resources 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service is part of the County Council and incorporates other community 
safety related services such as Emergency Management, Civil Protection Team, Trading Standards and 
Coroners. 

The Service is administered from its Headquarters in Quedgeley which co-locates Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service with Gloucestershire Constabulary. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service have 21 
Community Fire Stations with 32 staffed frontline pumping appliances, plus additional specialist assets, 
strategically located across Gloucestershire. Each appliance is resourced and mobilised according to the 
response need. 

 

 
5. Your Fire and Rescue Service 

 

 

ll

Page 28



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 11 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Structure: 

Information: Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service is part of the Community Safety Directorate (CSD) - Civil Protection Team, Trading Standards and Coroners 
fall under the Fire Service management team structure. 

Our People 
None of the things we do would be possible without our professional, highly skilled, motivated and well 
developed workforce whose composition is reflective of our diverse community. 

Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service workforce has a headcount of a total of 501 individuals employed 
on a mixture of full time and part time contracts; this can be broken down into the following groups: 

172 
Whole Time 

 

255 
On Call 

 

20 
Control 

 

54 

Staff 

36 
 

Page 29



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 12 

 

As a Significantly rural Fire and Rescue Service, as defined by HMICFRS, we make good use of on-call 
firefighters in areas where population levels and risks are low and the cost of full time cover would be 
prohibitive. 
Of the 21 stations across Gloucestershire, 16 of these are staffed entirely by on-call firefighters. We utilise 
on-call firefighters in a variety of ways to help make the most of our resources: 
 

• Community safety advice and education and emergency response in their local area. 
• Crewing for specialist appliances which our on-call firefighters have been trained to use. 
• Should unforeseen staff shortages occur, our on-call can be called in to ride alongside full 

time colleagues maximising emergency cover we provide in all areas. 
• Co-responding, whereby our staff utilise existing training and skills when mobilised to 

specified types of medical emergency in support of our Ambulance colleagues, often 
stabilising those in need before the arrival of an ambulance and optimising survival rates for 
critical care patients. 

• To ensure we reach as many people as possible with our prevention work, we use on-call 
firefighters to support our Community Safety Advisors when demand is high carrying out a 
significant number of Safe and Well visits to those most in need; and support to other 
community focused safety initiatives. 

 
Of the remaining five stations, two are staffed by full-time firefighters and three have a mixture of both full 
and on-call firefighters. The immediate response is designed to cover areas where higher call rates are 
experienced due to population and building numbers. 
Our Fire Control staff are based at Headquarters in Quedgeley and are the first point of contact for the 
public when an emergency occurs. They are well equipped and trained for emergency call handling 
providing calm reassurance and gathering vital information to support an emergency response. All of this 
helps ensure that we maintain the right resources, in the right place, when they are needed most. 
Our support staff provide the core functions of planning, administration, fleet maintenance and 
management, centralised purchasing and stores ensuring that the organisation as a whole can function on 
a day to day basis. When significant or large scale incidents occur they often go ‘above and beyond’ to 
make sure the public receive the highest standards of emergency response under difficult conditions. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 30



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 13 

Makeup of our workforce 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue continue to develop a more diverse and inclusive workforce. 

Gender Breakdown 

Information: Charts above show the proportion of females that work in GFRS service as a whole and the proportion of firefighter staff that are 
female as at March 2021. 

Of the 501 individuals employed by our Service 23% (115 individuals) are Female this can be broken down 
has follows: 

 Of all firefighters, female firefighters account for 17.1% (37 Whole time and 36 On call) this has 
been an improvement year on year through successful fire fighter recruitment campaigns. Our fire 
service performs significantly higher than England’s Average number of Total female fire fighters.  

 Our Control Staff and Support Staff combined have 42 members of staff that are females (56.8%) 
which aligns with England’s Average of 57.5%. 
 

 

Whole-
time 

Female 
firefighters 

On Call 
Female 

firefighters 

Total 
Female 

firefighters 

Fire Control 
Female 

Staff 

Support 
Staff 

Female 
Staff 

Total 
Female 

Staff 

2019 21.6% 11.4% 15.6% 68.4% 45.5% 20.5% 

2020 22.3% 12.4% 16.6% 70.0% 47.9% 22.0% 

2021 21.5% 14.1% 17.1% 75.0% 50.0% 23.0% 

Variance 
over 3 years 
+/- %  

-0.1% 2.7% 1.5% 6.6% 4.5% 2.5% 

England 8.0% 6.5% 7.5% 76.0% 54.8% 17.9% 

Performance 
against England 
statistics 

↑ ↑ ↑ ↔ ↔ ↑ 

Data source: www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/fire-statistics-data-tables (As at March 2021) - Performance against England Statistics - Green: 
Positive Direction of Travel, Amber: within - 5% Negative Direction of Travel, Red over - 5% Negative Direction of Travel) 

Page 31



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 14 

 

Ethnicity Breakdown 
 

 
Information: Chart above shows the proportion of BAME staff by ethnic origin that work in GFRS service as at March 2021. 
 

Of the 501 individuals employed by our Service 76% (381 individuals) are White, 21.6% (108 individuals) 
have not recorded their ethnicity and 2.4% (12 individuals) are from an Ethnic minority group this can be 
broken down has follows: 

 5.8% (10 individuals) of all Whole time firefighters. 

 0.8% (2 individuals) of all On call firefighters. 

 0% (0 Individuals) for our Control and Support staff. 

The number of individuals we employ that are from Ethnic minority groups is below England’s Average, 
however the service is gradually improving and works toward being a more culturally diverse workforce with 
implementation of the Cultural Improvement Action Plan. There are also a high proportion of individuals 
who have chosen not to state their ethnic origin 21.6% (108 individuals). 

 

 

Whole-
time  

Ethnic 
Minority 

firefighters 

On Call 
Ethnic 

Minority 
firefighters 

Total  
Ethnic 

Minority 
firefighters 

Fire Control 
Ethnic 

Minority 
Staff 

Support 
Staff 

Ethnic 
Minority 

Staff 

Total 
Ethnic 

Minority 
Staff 

2019 5.3% 0.4% 2.4% 0.0% 0.0% 2.1% 
2020 5.1% 0.4% 2.4% 0.0% 0.0% 2.1% 
2021 5.8% 0.8% 2.8% 0.0% 0.0% 2.4% 
Variance 
over 3 years 
+/- %  

0.6% 0.4% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 

England 5.9% 1.4% 4.3% 2.8% 7.4% 4.8% 
Performance 
against England 
statistics 

↓ ↔ ↔ ↔ ↓ ↔ 
Data source: www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/fire-statistics-data-tables (As at March 2021) - Performance against England Statistics - Green: 
Positive Direction of Travel, Amber: within - 5% Negative Direction of Travel, Red over - 5% Negative Direction of Travel)  

White
76.0%

Ethnic origin not 
stated
21.6%

Mixed
1.2%

Asian or Asian 
British
0.6%

Black or Black 
British
0.4%

Chinese or 
Other Ethnicity

0.2%

Page 32



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 15 

 

 
Collaboration 
 
We continue to build on the collaborative approach, ensuring all of our communities get access to the 
services they require in an efficient, effective and economic manner. 
 
The purpose, conditions and limitations of each partnership we are involved in are agreed, captured and 
monitored through partnership agreements and memoranda of understanding, to ensure the stated purpose 
of each is fulfilled. 
 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service continues to pursue further partnerships to bring an increasingly 
diverse range of benefits, where our existing skills and equipment can be brought to bear to provide added 
social value to the communities of Gloucestershire. Good examples of this are our support to cardiac care 
using enhanced first aid skills and additional equipment carried on fire engines to provide an immediate first 
response to heart attack victims where early intervention promotes better survival and recovery rates and 
Telecare, where support is given to enable individuals who would otherwise be in residential or palliative 
care settings to remain living independently within their own homes.  

 
 

Mutual Aid and Assistance 
 

Under Sections 13 and 16 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004, all Fire and Rescue Service have a 
legal duty to enter into ‘reinforcement’ schemes (local mutual aid and support) with neighbouring fire and 
rescue authorities. This means Fire and Rescue Services can draw on mutual assistance to ensure 
continuity of service provision across authority boundaries. 

 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service has formal legal agreements for reciprocal aid with each of our 
six surrounding services. This allows mutual support with bordering areas to provide the quickest response 
and supplying additional resources for large incidents. 

 
Our Control room which handles 999 calls and mobilise firefighters and fire engines to incidents has mutual 
aid arrangements in place with Avon Fire and Rescue Service providing resilience in the event of high call 
volumes. 

 
National Resilience refers to the capacity and capability of Fire and Rescue Services to work together with 
other responders to deliver a sustained and effective response to major incident, emergencies and 
disruptive events. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service are able to request national assets under this 
arrangement and support the National arrangements by providing specialist trained teams and resources 
which can be deployed country wide. 

 
 

Operational Assurance 
 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service recognise the importance of continuous improvement in all 
services it delivers, with particular focus on the safe and effective delivery of emergency service response.  

 
During 2020-2021, the service increased its capacity and focus on the assurance of operational incidents. 
Operational Assurance is used to promote workforce learning by identifying good practice and where 
improvements can be made in the delivery of our service. It allows the service to identify trends and provide 
evidence in order to guide future plans, especially in the areas of training, operational policy and 
investment. This work not only supports local learning but includes reporting through the national channels 
of Joint Organisational Learning (JOL) and the National Operational Learning (NOL). 

 
 

 

Page 33



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 16 

 

 

Overview 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service continues to perform to exacting standards with the aim of being 
effective and efficient in delivering value for money at all times. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service’s 
key performance indicators and targets against which the Service is measured can be found in 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service Community Safety Annual Plan. 

The following tables provide specific data surrounding prevention and protection activities over the last 
twelve months: 

 

Prevention and Protection 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target 
Variance 

over 3 
years 
+/- % 

Total number of incidents 5147 5370 5090 - -1.1% 

Number of Safe and Wells  8058 5538 1806 6000 -77.6% 
Fire Safety Audits completed 960 610 326 - -66.0% 
Number of Fire related fatalities 4 1 1 - -75.0% 
Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires 300 277 247 272 -17.7% 
Number of Deliberate fires 371 369 346 448 -6.7% 
Total number of Road Traffic Collisions attended 213 282 176 - -17.4% 
% of Safe and Well Visits to High risk groups 78.0% 81.0% 85.0% 75% 7.0% 

Data source (Variance over 3 years - Green: Positive Direction of Travel, Amber: within +/- 5% Negative Direction of Travel, Red over +/- 5% Negative 
Direction of Travel) 

 

Prevention and Protection- Outcome 
Measures 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Variance 
over 3 
years 
+/- % 

 Performance 
against 

Significantly 
rural  

Comparable 
Group 

% of Incidents that were fires 30.3% 25.0% 25.5% -4.8%  ↓ 
% of Fires that were Primary fires 48.7% 51.9% 47.0% -1.7%  ↔ 
% of Fires that were Dwelling fires 20.1% 21.9% 20.0% -0.1%  ↔ 
% of fires that were Accidental Dwelling fires 19.2% 20.6% 19.0% -0.2%  ↔ 
% of Fires that were Other buildings fires 10.3% 9.8% 9.2% -1.2%  ↔ 
% of Fires that were Road vehicle fires 13.5% 15.8% 13.0% -0.5%  ↔ 
% of Fires that were Other Outdoors fires 4.7% 4.3% 4.8% 0.1%  ↓ 

 
6. Performance 

Page 34



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 17 

% of Fires that were Secondary fires 43.7% 40.4% 46.8% 3.1%  ↓ 
% of Fires that were Chimney fires 7.6% 7.7% 6.2% -1.4%  ↔ 
% of Incidents that were Fire false alarms 33.3% 35.1% 34.3% 1.0%  ↓ 
% of Incidents that were Non-fire related 
incidents 36.4% 40.0% 40.2% 3.8%  ↑ 
% of Incidents that were Road Traffic 
Collisions 4.1% 5.2% 3.5% -0.7%  ↓ 
% of Incidents that were Special services 
incidents 34.8% 38.7% 38.8% 4.1%  ↑ 

% of Satisfactory Audits completed 90% 87% 88% -2.0%  ↑ 
Data source: www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/fire-statistics-data-tables  (Variance over 3 years and Performance 
against Significantly rural Comparable Group - Green: Positive Direction of Travel, Amber: within +/- 5% Negative Direction of Travel, 
Red over +/- 5% Negative Direction of Travel) 

Performance Summary: 

 The overall number of Accidental dwelling fires and deliberate fires has decreased over 3 years and 
better than target showing positive prevention activity. 

 The number of Road traffic collisions has also decreased over a 3 year period as further road 
improvement are made safety on our roads improves. 

 All categories of fires as a percentage of all fires have decreased or are within an acceptable 
tolerance over a 3 year period and are better or within tolerance of comparable group. 

 Percentage of Road Traffic Collisions as a percentage of all incidents has also decreased over a 3 
year period and is better than comparable group. 

 The number of fire fatalities remains low. 

 During periods of 2020-2021, to prevent the spread of COVID 19 within our communities, GFRS 
followed NFCC strategic intentions to limit face to face activity. Performance relating to the number 
of Safe and Well visits was affected. Although visits to those most at risk continued, the overall 
number of Safe and Wells visits reduced. However, our risk based approach targeted the most 
vulnerable people with 85% of all visits being to those at high risk. 

 The number of Fire safety audits has decreased over 3 years, a clear strategy has been put in place 
and risk based inspection program that effectively identifies premises for audit with the aim to 
increasing the number and frequency of audit. By October 2021, all audits will be complete to all 
higher risk premises, the subsequent audit score will then determine at what frequency we return to 
these premises as per assurance work with neighbouring service. 

 Due to the increased incidents and support to partner agencies during COVID 19, special services 
incidents and non-fire related incidents increased through 2020/21. 
 

Page 35



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 18 

The following table provides specific data surrounding Response activities over the last twelve 
months: 

Response 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Target 
Variance 

over 3 
years 
+/- % 

Performance 
against 

Significantly 
rural 

Comparable 
Group  

On Call Availability 
1st Appliance 94% 97% 91% 90% -3.2% - 
Average Response 
to All Dwelling fires  9 min 26 sec 9 min 27 sec 9 min 20 sec 9 mins -1.1% ↑ 
Average Response 
to Primary Fires  10 min 17 sec 10 min 23 sec 10 min 06 sec 10 mins -1.8% ↔ 
Average Response 
to Secondary Fires  10 min 03 sec 9 min 53 sec 10 min 24 sec - 3.5% ↓ 
Average Response 
to Road Traffic 
Collisions  

11 min 21 sec 11 min 30 sec 10 min 59 sec - -3.2% ↔ 
Data source: www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/fire-statistics-data-tables  (Variance over 3 years and Performance 
against Significantly rural Comparable Group - Green: Positive Direction of Travel, Amber: within +/- 5% Negative Direction of Travel, 
Red over +/- 5% Negative Direction of Travel) 

Performance Summary: 

 Average Response times to Primary fires and Road Traffic Collisions has improved and within 
tolerance of target and comparable group.  

 Although performance for average response times to all Dwelling fires is worse than target and 
comparable group, the response times have improved on 2018/19 and 2019/20; Average response 
times to those Dwelling fires that were accidental also showed improvement in 2020/21. Improving 
response times remains an area of focus for 2021-2022. 

 Performance of average response times to secondary fires is worse than previous years due to the 
increased number of secondary fires however our performance still remains better than our 
comparable group. 

 The availability of On Call first Appliance has dipped from last year but remains above the 
90% service target. 

Page 36



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 19 

 

 

Finance 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service continues to deliver excellent value for money to the local 
community. In 2020 – 2021 Net Revenue expenditure, including capital charges was £25,161,632 it takes 
into account a total income of £6,352,899 made up of specific revenue grants from HM Government and 
income received where the Service has charged for activities related to its non- emergency functions. 

 

Breakdown of expenditure 2021-2021: 

 

 
The chart below shows a breakdown of how the Fire Service budget was spent over the last 3 years. 

Expenditure Type 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 

Employee cost £13,183,309 £14,696,739 £16,166,396 
Premises £2,335,930 £2,426,419 £2,312,432 
Transportation £1,144,735 £1,142,847 £1,111,572 
Supply and Service £2,487,661 £3,074,085 £3,268,060 

Central Support recharges £1,553,538 £1,730,219 £2,033,631 

Capital Charges -£1,823,634 £3,273.93 £4,398,905 

Gain/Loss on disposable assets £281,549 £140,700 £12,000 

Private finance Initiative (PFI) 
Finance lease interest costs £2,208,099 £2,157,503 £2,211,535 

Income (incl. Government grants) -£5,757,027 -£6,223,960 -£6,352,899 

Data source: Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

Employee cost
51.3%

Premises
7.3%

Transportation
3.5%

Supply and 
Service
10.4%

Central Support 
recharges

6.5%

Capital Charges
14.0%

(PFI) Finance 
lease interest 

costs
7.0%

Page 37



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 20 

 

 
 
Audit and Assurance 
 
 
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS): 
 
The first annual assessment of the fire and rescue services was released 17 December 2019. This 
assessment examined the service’s effectiveness, efficiency and how well it looks after its people. The 
assessment is designed to give the public information about how their local fire and rescue service is 
performing in several important areas, in a way that is comparable with other services across England.  
 
A copy of the HMICFRS inspection report can be found here: 
 
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/frs-assessment/frs-2018/gloucestershire/ 
 
HMICFRS, in 2019, rated Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service overall as ‘Requires Improvement’ and 
raised two areas as ‘cause of concerns’. These related to our Business Fire Safety strategy and Service 
Culture.  
 
As a result GFRS introduced the Portfolio Management Office (PMO) its core function is the prioritisation 
and control of the services projects, in line with its strategic objectives and capacity to deliver. The PMO 
has oversight of all projects and business improvement activities and it encompasses the wider 
improvement programme that was informed by the HMICFRS findings and recommendations, including the 
Business Fire Safety and Cultural Action Plans.  
 
The Portfolio Management Board creates better visibility and oversight and provides independent scrutiny 
of all projects and has oversight of, and manages all change activity across the service. It is accountable for 
ensuring all projects are adequately resourced and delivering on time and to scope and makes decisions 
on initiating new projects. 
 
 
 
County Council Audit:  
 
Gloucestershire County Council routinely undertakes an internal audit of functions and services that are 
carried out on their behalf. A total of 18 audits were undertaken which generated 118 individual audit 
recommendations (High Priority and Medium Priority).  
 
At the beginning of August 2019 the GFRS Improvement Board was established. The remit of the Board 
included the GFRS Internal Audit Action Plan outcomes and actions required from HMICFRS inspection. In 
addition, the Board’s goal was to consider the wider picture of collective improvement for GFRS. 
 
As at February 2021, Internal Audit confirmed the Board had signed off 100 (85%) out of the 124 actions 
(from 118 audit recommendation) total as implemented. A further Internal Audit Follow up progress report is 
to be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee in July 2021. 
 
Details of the Audit can be found below (Audit and Governance Committee 25 March 2021): 
 
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=655&MId=10131 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 21 

 

 
 
Achievements over the last 12 months 
 

 There has been an increased focus on prevention and protection initiatives to ensure our work 
supports those most vulnerable in the community, these works include: 
 

• Grenfell Phase 1 Recommendations. 
• Business Fire Safety action plan. 
• Building Risk review. 
• Review fire investigation against the new standard and enhance knowledge across all 

levels of operational staff. 
 

 We have begun to explore, further develop and maximise opportunities to collaborate with partners 
and other stakeholders. 
 

 We have begun the process of improving our Performance information with the implementation of 
operational monthly performance indicators. 

 
 Reconfigure and reform of our Service through: 

 
• Implementation of our Cultural Improvement Action Plan. 
• A Service Restructure - We have implemented a permanent change to the Service’s 

structure to include a fourth Area Manager. This allows greater focus and aligns 
resources with Business Planning & Performance, Transformation & Organisational 
Development, Response & Resilience and Prevention & Protection. 

• Staffing - we have made substantive appointments at management positions across 
the service. 

 
 
 
 
Impact of Covid-19 
 
From the end of January 2020, the international spread of COVID-19 changed the way we live our lives. 
GFRS have continued to provide core statutory functions throughout the Pandemic.  
 
GFRS intentions have been:  
 

• To delay and mitigate the impact of COVID-19 across the UK in order to protect our 
communities. 

• To proactively protect our communities and limit the spread of COVID-19. 
• To promote economic resilience and support businesses navigate changing restrictions 

and obligations. 
• To ensure the safety and wellbeing of our staff in the pursuance of their duties. 
• To maintain an effective emergency response – we will continue to respond to all 

incidents. 
• To maintain essential preparedness activity – we will continue to prepare, train and 

exercise against foreseeable risk with a focus on core competencies. 
• To protect our communities from fire – adopt a risk-based approach to protection activity, 

enforcement action will continue based on a suitable and sufficient risk assessment. 
• To prevent the impact of fire and other emergencies on our communities – we will adopt a 

risk-based approach to prevention – very high risk interventions (home safety checks/safe 
and well visits) will continue based on a suitable and sufficient risk assessment. 

• To ensure effective business continuity, procurement and recovery arrangements are in 
place throughout the sector. 

• To ensure that the sector’s response is co-ordinated and integrated with other responding 
agencies, promote shared situational awareness and joint understanding of risk. 

• To support a return to normality. 
 

Page 39



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 22 

 

In addition: 
 
Whilst continuing to carry out our statutory function, our dedicated staff have taken on many additional 
duties including ambulance driving, delivering supplies to the vulnerable, delivering PPE to NHS and care 
facilities, helping with antigen and antibody testing, providing infection prevention and control training, 
assisting mobile Covid-19 testing, delivering support to education establishments and supporting the 
mortuary services for the county when sadly needed. We are also providing facilities and support for the 
Covid-19 mass vaccination and testing programme. 
 
The service have also been collaborating with other fire and rescue services in the south west. Services 
have shared good practice and information and evaluated the activities they undertook. This has allowed 
shared information on prevention, protection, and response and staff wellbeing.  
 
This positive work has been recognised by HMICFRS during their Covid-19 response inspection carried out 
in November 2020. 
 
HMICFRs reported: 
 
“In summary, the service adapted well during the first phase of the pandemic. It continued to provide its 
core statutory functions and gave additional support to partners and the wider community. It managed its 
resources effectively and maintained its ability to respond to emergencies. It concentrated its home and 
building safety work on those most at risk and introduced innovations such as remote assessments and 
desktop audits to limit face-to-face contact. This meant the service supported the people of Gloucestershire 
well during the pandemic and helped limit the spread of the virus.  
 
Notably, the service quickly reviewed priorities and redeployed resources to create capacity. It provided 
staff and premises to assist with the pandemic response. Firefighters drove ambulances, delivered 
personal protective equipment (PPE) and medical supplies to NHS sites, moved the deceased, and 
delivered essential items to vulnerable people. Fire stations were used to base ambulances and for PPE 
storage and distribution. Some of this support has continued throughout the pandemic, and firefighters 
have recently resumed driving ambulances.  
 
The service took extra steps to support the wellbeing of its staff. It provided additional wellbeing support 
and worked with staff, including black, Asian and minority ethnic staff associations, to tailor this support for 
those who were at a higher risk from COVID-19. It brought forward plans to update IT equipment which 
enabled agile working and improved communication. Making service information and systems available 
online to staff using their personal IT helped support remote working.” 
 
The full report can be found in the link below: 
 
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/publication-html/covid-19-inspection-gloucestershire/ 
 

 

Page 40



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 23 

 

 

Community Risk Management Plan: 
As the current Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) comes to the end of its period and following 
HMICFRS inspection and recommendations regarding our IRMP, we are implementing an improved 
performance framework and a more robust risk profiling process to inform our next Risk management plan 
CRMP (Community Risk Management Plan) which will be out for full public consultation during 2021-2022. 

 

Community Safety Annual Plan: 
Details regarding specific projects that we will start in 2021 can found in our Community Safety Annual 
Plan, use the link below:  

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/glosfire/about-us/publications-and-reports/ 

 

Looking forward following Covid-19: 
We recognise that the arrangements for managing the pandemic may carry on for some time. In order to be 
as efficient and effective as possible, we will need to: 

• Determine how to adopt the new and innovative ways of working introduced during the pandemic, to 
secure lasting improvements for the longer term. 

• Consider our pandemic flu planning arrangements and whether current plans are comprehensive 
enough to meet the specific needs of the service and our community.  

• Identify the impact of risk on Gloucestershire from the pandemic and what measures will need to be 
taken to mitigate those risks. 

 

Preparation for HMICFRS re-inspection: 
We continue to work through the identified areas of concern and the wider improvement programme that 
was informed by the HMICFRS initial findings and in preparation for the re-inspection we will produce a 
plan that will help the Service ensure it is best placed to meet the requirements of the inspection. We will 
also actively support and engage with our staff to help prepare them for the inspection. 

Further information regarding the outcome of the formal inspection will be included in the next Statement of 
Assurance (2021/22). 

 

 

 
 

 
7. Looking Forward – Future Challenges 

Page 41



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 24 

If you would like to comment on the activities of Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service or you 
are concerned on any fire safety matter, please visit our website for further information: - 

 
http://www.glosfire.gov.uk 

 
Should you wish to make any further comment, please contact us using the following details: - 

 
Chief Fire Officer 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service Fire  
Service HQ 
Waterwells Drive  
Quedgeley  
Gloucester GL2 2AX 
Telephone: 01452 888777 
Email: fire@glosfire.gov.uk 

                              

 
8. Have Your Say 

Page 42



STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 2020-2021 25 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



HMICFRS Inspection Update for GFRS

GFRS’s round two, tranche two, HMICFRS interviews ended on the 18th November after eight weeks 
of inspection.
Initial feedback was given to CFO Mark Preece, the Principal Officer team and Cllr Dave Norman in 
the form of a hot debrief on 1st December 2021.
Publication of final reports for all FRS’s in tranche two (including GFRS) will be published in Spring 
2022. GFRS will receive a draft report in advance of the final publication date.

State of Fire and Rescue – The Annual Assessment of Fire and Rescue Services in England 2021

Published on the 15/12/2021.
Link: State of Fire and Rescue – The Annual Assessment of Fire and Rescue Services in England 2021 
(justiceinspectorates.gov.uk)

The twelve FRS’s in tranche one have had their round two inspection reports published this week 
(15/12/2021). This does not include GFRS but when read it gives a flavour of the national FRS picture 
from tranche one round two.

The report identifies the following from the first 12 Services inspected during round two:
Headlines:

1. Progress has been made in some areas – encouraging to see many services that had received 
‘causes of concern’ in the first round of inspection have taken steps to improve and act on 
recommendations.

2. More change is urgently required - services have failed to act sufficiently in ‘areas of 
improvement’.

3. National recommendations need to be brought in faster.
4. The speed of national reform has dropped.
5. Insufficient action to develop prospective future CFO’s. 
6. Services are making good progress on protection.
7. Services need to do more on prevention.
8. Inconsistent funding and governance arrangements persist.
9. Some services don’t allocate resources appropriately.
10. Many services rely on dual contracts and overtime, which can create inefficiencies.
11. Good intentions to promote equality, diversity and inclusion aren’t always successful.

Effectiveness:
a. Most services are prioritising protection work
b. Too many services aren’t taking enough action on prevention.
c. Building risk review work is on track.
d. Levels of prevention activity are declining and targeting is poor.
e. Services are not doing enough to evaluate their prevention activities.
f. Safeguarding awareness has improved.
g. Protection action is being taken to tackle fire setting behaviour.
h. Services are well prepared to respond to routine incidents.
i. More needs to be done to improve the on-call crewing model.
j. Services are well prepared to respond to major and multi-agency incidents.
k. Cross-border training is still below pre-pandemic levels.
l. Services disseminate what they have learned widely.
m. There is still an inconsistent approach to identifying and mitigating risk.
n. Data used by services to build risk profiles varies too much.

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/uploads/state-of-fire-and-rescue-2021-single-page-format.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/uploads/state-of-fire-and-rescue-2021-single-page-format.pdf


o. Some services need to improve how they collect and disseminate risk information.
Efficiency:

a. Services are mitigating financial risk.
b. Services are making use of new ways of working.
c. More needs to be done to make sure workforces are productive.
d. Resources aren’t always aligned to risk.
e. Many services can’t fully cope – services need to make sure that they can make the changes 

required to enable them to operate more efficiently and effectively.
f. Services need to better manage the use of duel contracts and overtime.
g. All services collaborate with local organisations and authorities to some extent, but 

evaluation is limited.
h. Fleet and estate strategies should be aligned to IRMP’s.
i. Control room continuity plans need regular testing.

People:
a. Values are better understood and demonstrated.
b. Health and safety and wellbeing provision are prioritised.
c. Good intention to promote equality, diversity and inclusion generally haven’t resulted in 

tangible improvements, and many services don’t clearly define what they are working 
towards.

d. Equality, diversity and inclusion initiatives must not be carried out in isolation.
e. Workforces don’t always represent the communities they serve.
f. Lack of workforce planning.
g. Not enough is being done to plan for future leaders

National recommendations
The report states - HMICFRS national recommendations need to be brought in faster.
‘We have made national recommendations: 
 the Home Office should precisely determine the role of fire and rescue services, to remove 

any ambiguity; 
 the sector should remove unjustifiable variation, including in how they define risk;
 the sector should review and reform how effectively pay and conditions are determined;
 the Home Office should invest chief fire officers with operational independence, whether 

through primary legislation or in some other manner; there should be a code of ethics; and 
 the Home Office should ensure that the sector has sufficient capacity and capability to bring 

about change’

Page 46



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2021/22

10 September 2021 12 November 2021         14 January 2022

 Community Risk Management Plan 

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 Recruitment issues within the Fire Services, 
particularly relating to BAME 

 Overview of the financial health of GFRS, 
including any pressures 

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 GFRS Budget (following budget scrutiny)
 PCC and Chief Fire Officer to present on 

blue light collaboration in Gloucestershire 
(also to produce a written report on their 
collaborative activities).

 GFRS Statement of Assurance 2020/21

4 March 2022 27 May 2022 15 July 2022 

 Update on the CRMP
 GFRS collaboration with SWASFT – report 

from GFRS highlighting the impact of this 
work on the service, including the positives 
and negatives of this collaboration (look to 
invite someone from SWASFT to attend 
meeting)

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 8



Future Items 

1 Consultative White Paper on fire 
services reform 

Additional meeting 
to be arranged.

5

2 HMICFRS inspection feedback Additional meeting 
to be arranged – 
exempt session. 

Workshops, visits and member development sessions

3 Fire Cover Review/ High Risk Buildings Date to be 
confirmed.

1 The Role of Elected Members in 
Emergencies – Development Session

Thurs 7 Oct 2021 
at 10am via Webex

4 2 GFRS Members Awareness Session Fri 19 Nov 2021, 
Skill Zone

P
age 48


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	FRSC Actions - 12 November 2021
	Report to Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee 14 Jan 2022

	5 GFRS Budget
	6 GFRS Statement of Assurance 2020/21
	7 HMICFRS Inspection Update for GFRS and State of Fire Report 2021
	8 Work Plan 2021/22

